Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of 3D Future Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of 3D Future Technologies Pvt.
Ltd. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS Financial Statement”)
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss
(financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income), cash flows and change in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under section 133 of Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
and ensuring their operating effectiveness and the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (Financial position) of the Company
as at 31st March, 2019, and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive loss), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting.
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:
i.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial positions.

ii.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts as
at 31st March, 2019 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 118160W

Sanjay T. Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623
Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May 2019

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of 3D Future Technologies
Pvt Ltd. on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March 2019.
1.

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) During the year, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at
year end and there were no material discrepancies noticed on such verification.
(c) There were no immovable properties acquired by the Company.

2.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management, which, in our
opinion reasonable and adequate.
(b) The procedure of physical verification of inventory followed by the management
was reasonable and adequate in relation to size of the Company and nature of its
business.
(c) No material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during
the year.

3.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

4.

The

5.

The company has not accepted deposits under the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and under the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

6.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of its products.

7.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of above statutory dues for a period exceeding six months from the
date they became payable.
In our opinion and as per the information and explanations given to us, there were no
disputed dues of income Tax, sales Tax, service Tax, customs duty, excise duty, value
added tax and goods and service tax.

8.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or
financial institution or government during the year. The Company did not have any
outstanding debentures during the year.

9.

The Company has not raised any funds by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

10.

During the course of our examination of books of accounts and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during
the year nor have we been informed of any such instances by the Management;

11.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act.

12.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company therefore this clause is not applicable to the
Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

13.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into
by the company with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of

14.

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standard.

15.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

16.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

17.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 118160W

Sanjay T. Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623
Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2019

Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial
statements of 3D Future Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. 3D Future
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (“the Company”), as at 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the guidance note on Audit on
Internal Financial controls over the financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Notes require that we comply with ethical requirements, plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists
and testing and evaluating the designing and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

I

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
Deferred tax assets (net)
Current tax assets
Other non-current assets

(Amount in `)

Note

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

4
5

19,215,678
770,172

17,451,739
1,135,635

6
7

660,073

4,999,540
333,499

8
9
10

26,005,728
4,715
42,995

16,513,148
2,285
69,614

46,699,361

40,505,460

11

2,674,522

1,106,347

12
13
14
15
16

566,307
2,085,748
405,381
706,142
5,928

527,668
1,447,876
645,799
344,271
-

17

5,457,353
11,901,381

2,542,962
6,614,923

58,600,742

47,120,382

18

85,000,000
(76,217,371)
8,782,629

65,000,000
(47,979,351)
17,020,649

19
20

1,182,151
1,182,151

2,469,600
747,553
3,217,153

21
22
19
20
23

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550
223,496
3,841,044
48,635,962

18,884,025
707,562
4,659,823
132,359
2,498,812
26,882,581

58,600,742

47,120,382

Total non-current assets
II Current assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other bank balance
(v) Loans
Other current assets
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
III Equity
Equity Share capital
Other equity
Total equity
IV Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
V

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payable
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying note nos. 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118160W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623

Aditya T. Malkani
Chairman
DIN: 01585637

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
Director
DIN: 00031985

Nidhi Khandelwal
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Amount in `)
Year ended
31 March 2019

Notes

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of traded goods
Change in inventories of finished goods,
work -in-progress and traded goods

24
25

20,056,921
1,132,233
21,189,154

11,946,592
849,742
12,796,334

26

7,075,510
345,627
(98,591)

4,412,151
217,125
(26,139)

15,673,833
1,505,894
5,245,601
29,268,067
59,015,941

12,214,570
1,465,354
4,425,175
15,374,116
38,082,353

(37,826,787)
(37,826,787)

(25,286,019)
(25,286,019)

(9,517,589)

(4,957,500)

(28,309,198)

(20,328,518)

27
28
29
30
31

Employee benefit expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit/(loss) before tax

32

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax benefit

Year ended
31 March 2018

Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss)
A (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit
and loss
(ii) Income tax on items that will be reclassified subsequently to the

-

-

-

statement of profit and loss
B (i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit
and loss
- Remeasurement of gain/(losses) on post employment defined
benefit plans
(ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit and loss
Total other Comprehensive loss, net of tax
Total Comprehensive loss for the period and Other Comprehensive loss
for the year
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

96,187

24,157

(25,009)

(6,220)

71,178
(28,238,020)

17,937
(20,310,582)

(3.33)
(3.33)

(3.13)
(3.13)

33

The accompanying note nos. 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118160W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623

Aditya T. Malkani
Chairman
DIN: 01585637

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
Director
DIN: 00031985

Nidhi Khandelwal
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Amount in `)
Year ended
31 March 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Year ended
31 March 2018

Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off
Gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVTPL
Sundry balances written back
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Operating profit before working capital changes

(37,826,787)

(25,286,019)

5,245,601
1,505,894
(34,892)
(409,382)
4,999,540
(38,639)
(220,581)
(26,779,245)

4,425,175
1,465,354
(51,291)
85,124
(160,046)
70,265
9,466
(19,441,972)

Adjustment for movements in:
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories
Increase in trade receivable
Increase in trade payable
Increase in employee benefit obligation
Increase in loan
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax refund/(paid)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities

(1,568,176)
(638,207)
1,760,833
621,922
(315,983)
(2,469,600)
(2,887,772)
7,860,403
1,427,492
(22,988,333)
(2,430)
(22,990,763)

123,170
(1,173,234)
377,623
487,824
(59,558)
2,469,600
(1,959,451)
3,787,204
2,079,719
(13,309,076)
5,065
(13,304,011)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchase of intangible assets
Loans given
Loans realised
Proceeds from sale of current investments
Investment in bank deposits (original maturity more than 3 months)
Maturity of bank deposits (original maturity more than 3 months)
Interest income
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

(6,633,484)
(10,593)
(5,928)
(703,871)
342,560
23,741
(6,987,575)

(8,505,803)
8,000
1,900,000
(342,560)
322,067
22,777
(6,595,519)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Proceeds from borrowings (net)
Repayment of borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities

20,000,000
11,243,814
(1,505,894)
29,737,920

25,000,000
(3,483,486)
(1,465,354)
20,051,160

(240,418)
645,799
405,381

151,630
494,169
645,799

172,819
232,562
405,381

22,085
623,714
645,799

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (Refer note 14)
Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14)
Cash in hand
Balance with scheduled banks in current accounts
Total

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of Cash Flow.
The accompanying note nos. 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118160W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623

Aditya T. Malkani
Chairman
DIN: 01585637

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
Director
DIN: 00031985

Nidhi Khandelwal
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Amount in `)

a) Equity share capital
Particulars
As at 1 April 2017
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2018
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2019

Number of shares
4,000,000
2,500,000
6,500,000
2,000,000
8,500,000

b) Other equity

Balance at 01 April 2017

Reserve and Surplus
Retained earnings
(27,668,770)

Profit or loss for the year

(20,328,518)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

Amount
40,000,000
25,000,000
65,000,000
20,000,000
85,000,000

Total other equity
(27,668,770)
(20,328,518)
17,937

17,937

Total comprehensive income

(20,310,582)

(20,310,582)

Balance at 31 March 2018

(47,979,352)

(47,979,352)

Profit or loss for the year

(28,309,198)

(28,309,198)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

71,178

71,178

Total comprehensive income
Balance at 31 March 2019

(28,238,020)
(76,217,371)

(28,238,020)
(76,217,371)

The accompanying note nos. 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118160W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623

Aditya T. Malkani
Chairman
DIN: 01585637

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
Director
DIN: 00031985

Nidhi Khandelwal
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
1

COMPANY OVERVIEW
3D Future Technologies Private Limited (referred to as “the Company” hereinafter) was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with its
registered office at Ador House, 3rd Floor, 6-K. Dubash Marg, Mumbai-400001, Maharashtra, India. The Company was promoted & incorporated by M/s. Ador
Fontech Limited, (100% holding) on 19th January, 2015 to expand business opportunity in the 3D Printing Dental Health Care Market in India.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a) Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS
(i) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
(ii) These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 15, 2019.
(b) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS which requires management to make estimates, assumptions and exercise judgement in
applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.
The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions.
Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known
or materialised.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and future periods affected.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.
(c) Basis of measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except
for certain financial assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value as described below and defined
benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind ASs.
Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
Fair value for measurement and /or disclosure purpose in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value,
such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
For other fair value related disclosures refer note no. 40.
(d) Functional and presentation currency
These Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the Company’s functional currency.
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
The Company has applied following accounting policies to all periods presented in the Ind AS Financial Statement.
(a) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes and other indirect taxes
excluding excise duty.
Excise duty is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of
excise duty flows to Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty. However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/Goods and Service Tax (GST) is
not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the Government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
Revenue from sales is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the commodity sold are transferred to the customer which generally
coincides with delivery. Revenues from sale of byproducts are included in revenue.
Export benefits are accounted on recognition of export sales. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is
recognised using effective rate of interest method.
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Property, plant and equipment
The company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at
transition date to IndAS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as at transition date pursuant to the exemption
under IndAS 101" First -time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards".
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, attributable
borrowing cost and any other directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning and removing of an asset and restoring the site after its use, if the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.
The Company provides depreciation on all assets on written down value basis over its useful life of asset which is in line with Schedule II of Companies
Act,2013. The management has estimated the useful life of 3D Dental Printer Machine is for 8 years.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to the
statements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria
are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
(ii) Capital work in progress
Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the
commissioning of an asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until the period of commissioning
has been completed. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is credited to capital work in progress.
(iii) Depreciation
Assets in the course of development or construction and freehold land are not depreciated.
Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write
off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a written down value basis over its expected useful life determined by the management based on
technical estimates, as follows:
The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:
Plant and equipment
02 to 15 years
Furniture and fixtures
10 years
Office equipment
03 to 5 years
Electrical Installation
10 years
Individual items of assets costing upto ` 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
The management has estimated the useful life of 3D Dental Printer Machine is for 8 years.
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Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from such costs. The carrying amount of the
remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of
the economic benefit.
When significant spare parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for
prospectively.
(c) Intangible assets
The company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible assets as recognised in the financial statements as at transition date to IndAS,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as at transition date pursuant to the exemption under IndAS 101" First -time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards".
Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The Company currently does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful
life. Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:
Computer Software & websites
03 to 5 years
(d) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through statement of profit and loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial assets is described below Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.
Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI,
is classified as at FVTPL.
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In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has
designated its investments in debt instruments as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.
Financial Assets - Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:
(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
(ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial
assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables or any contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:
(i) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.
(ii) Debt instruments measured at FVTPL: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value.
The change in fair value is taken to the statement of Profit and Loss.
(iii) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value.
Rather, ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.
The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.
Financial liabilities - Recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement of profit and loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through statement of profit and loss.
Loans and Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (hereinafter referred
as EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities - Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
For more information on financial instruments Refer note no. 40
(e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.
(f) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
(g) Impairment of Non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cashgenerating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.
(h) Government Grants
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Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is treated as deferred income and released to the statement of profit and loss over the expected
useful lives of the assets concerned. When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to statement of profit and loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset. When loans or similar
assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest
is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to
financial liabilities.
(i) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap and by products which are valued at net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
(a) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis.
(b) Finished goods, work in progress and traded goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to the present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
Obsolete inventories are identified and written down to net realisable value. Slow moving and defective inventories are identified and provided to net realisable
value.
(j) Taxation
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except when it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Sales/ VAT and Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 'Sales/ VAT and Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid, except:
(a) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
(b) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, the net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax
liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the
Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.
(k) Employee benefit schemes
(a) Short-term employee benefits
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Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of shortterm employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.
Compensated absences:
Compensated absences accruing to employees and which can be carried to future periods but where there are restrictions on availment or encashment or where
the availment or encashment is not expected to occur wholly in the next twelve months, the liability on account of the benefit is determined actuarially using the
projected unit credit method.
(b) Post-employment benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to
pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund
scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.
(ii) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity and Provident fund
Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or
more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of
years of employment with the Company. Presently the Company’s gratuity plan is unfunded.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets if any. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit and loss.
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund
Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make
monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.
(l) Provision for liabilities and charges, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.
Provisions represent liabilities to the Company for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle
such an obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present
value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of
business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business.
There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult
to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the financial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such
contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
(m) Foreign currency transactions
In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair
value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.
All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging
instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.
(n) Earnings per share
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The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
(o) Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in nature of products and services offered,
the nature of production processes, the type and class of customer and distribution methods.
Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial statements. Inter-segment revenue is reported on
the basis of transactions which are primarily market led. Segment results represent profits before finance charges, unallocated corporate expenses and taxes.
“Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives/costs attributable to the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable
to segments.
(p) Leases
Leases are recognised as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
The Company as lessee
Assets used under finance leases are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet for an amount that corresponds to the lower of fair value
and the present value of minimum lease payments determined at the inception of the lease and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount.
The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the
payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
The Company as a Lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the
Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life.
Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
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(Amount in `)

Property, plant and equipment
Plant and
equipment*
Year ended 31 March 2108
Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount

Furniture and Electrical
fixtures
Installations

Office
Equipment

Total

15,015,391
7,261,775
22,277,166

1,738,373
91,538
1,829,911

68,310
68,310

1,355,324
1,152,490
2,507,814

18,177,398
8,505,803
26,683,201

4,040,863
3,120,103
7,160,966

444,123
338,833
782,956

18,936
12,781
31,717

676,657
579,166
1,255,823

5,180,579
4,050,883
9,231,462

Year ended 31 March 2019
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount

22,277,166
5,043,528
27,320,694

1,829,911
68,320
1,898,231

68,310
68,310

2,507,814
1,521,636
4,029,450

26,683,201
6,633,484
33,316,685

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge during the year
Disposal
Closing accumulated depreciation

7,160,966
3,682,796
10,843,762

782,956
273,459
1,056,415

31,717
9,472
41,189

1,255,823
903,818
2,159,641

9,231,462
4,869,545
14,101,007

Net Carrying value
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2019

15,116,200
16,476,932

1,046,955
841,816

36,593
27,121

1,251,991
1,869,809

17,451,739
19,215,678

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Accumulated depreciation 1 April 2017
Depreciation charge during the year
Disposal
Closing accumulated depreciation

*The Management has estimated the useful life of 3D Dental Printer for a period of 8 years as compared to 15 years of life envisaged under the
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 due to technological obsolescence.
5

(Amount in `)

Intangible assets
Computer
Software
Year ended 31 March 2018
Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2017
Additions
Closing gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation 1 April 2017
Amortisation charges for the year
Closing accumulated amortisation
Year ended 31 March 2019
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Websites

Total

1,493,113
1,493,113

227,500
227,500

1,720,613
1,720,613

199,314
298,459
497,773

11,372
75,833
87,205

210,686
374,292
584,978

1,493,113
10,593

227,500
-

1,720,613
10,593
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Closing gross carrying amount

1,503,706

227,500

1,731,206

Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation charge during the year
Closing accumulated amortisation

497,773
300,223
797,996

87,205
75,833
163,038

584,978
376,056
961,034

Net Carrying value
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2019

995,340
705,710

140,295
64,462

1,135,635
770,172

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Non-current investments

(Amount in `)

Particulars
Investments in equity shares (fully paid- up)
Unquoted - (at amortised cost)
2,345 (31 March 2018: 2,345) equity shares of Centre For Technology Assisted
Reconstructive Surgery Pvt. Ltd.

As at
As at
31
31 March 2018
March 2019

-

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments

4,999,540

-

-

Total non current investments

-

4,999,540

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Provision for diminution in value of investments in unquoted
equity Investments

-

4,999,540
-

In the year 2016, the Company had acquired the 19% stake in the Centre For Technology Assissted Reconstructive
Surgery Pvt. Ltd. ("CTARS") by investing `49,99,540 consist of 2345 fully paid equity share of ` 10 at par with a premium
of ` 49,76,090. The said Company and management agreed to explore the option to exit from Shareholder's agreement
executed between Company and CTARS dated 6 July, 2016 under the exit methodology. CTRAS has agreed to repay the
investment of Rs. 49,99,540 along with interest of `5,00,000 in a phased manner. Accordingly the said Company had sent
post dated cheque and the said cheque were deposited and got dishonored. The Company had filed necessary suit against
CTARS under section under section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act 1881.
Considering the risk associated with the equity investment during the year under review, a 100% Provision for diminution
in value of investments has been created. However, the management is in the opinion that the said amount will be
recovered through legal process and better chance to recover entire money with interest.
7

Loan

(Amount in `)
As at
As at
31
31 March 2018
March 2019

Particulars
Considered good- unsecured
Security deposits
-With statutory authorities
-Others
Total loan
8

25,000
635,073

25,000
308,499

660,073

333,499
(Amount in `)

Deferred tax assets (Net)

As at
As at
31
31 March 2018
March 2019

Particulars
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

26,103,681
97,953

16,558,642
45,494

Total deferred tax assets (Net)

26,005,728

16,513,148

The management is in opinion that the chances of break-even point of business are very high within span of 1-2 years
considering expansion of segment of business in different locations/states. There is high probability of turnaround of
business with upward revision of bottom line in the financial year 2021-22.
Therefore, the Company has recognised deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences and accumulated
unused tax losses as per applicable provisions of Income Tax Act during the period under review.
The major components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:
(Amount in `)

As at 31 March 2019
Particulars
Tax losses
Difference between written down value of property, plant and
equipments and intangible assets as per the books of accounts and
Income Tax Act,1961.

Balance sheet
Balance sheet
Profit and loss OCI
FY
as at 01 April,
as at 31 March
FY 2018-19
2018-19
2019
2018
15,829,753

9,027,922

-

24,857,675

460,395

360,530

-

820,925

Expense claimed for tax purpose on payment basis

(31,863)

(42,280)

-

(74,143)

Provision for expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis

266,442

181,596

-

448,038

Remeasurement benefit of the defined benefit plans through OCI
Difference in carrying value and tax base of investments measured
at FVTPL

2,052

-

(25,009)

(22,957)

(13,631)

(10,179)

-

(23,810)

Deferred tax (expense)/benefit
Net Deferred tax (liabilities)/Assets

9,517,589
16,513,148

(25,009)
26,005,728
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Current tax assets
As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Advance payment of income tax

4,715

2,285

Total current tax assets

4,715

2,285

Particulars

10

(Amount in `)

Other non-current assets
Particulars
Advances other than capital advances
Prepayments
Total other non-current assets

11

(Amount in `)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

42,995

69,614

42,995

69,614
(Amount in `)

Inventories
Particulars
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials including packing material
Finished goods
Traded goods
Total inventories

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

2,492,612
181,910
2,674,522

1,023,027
83,320
1,106,347
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Current investments (at fair value through profit or loss)
Particulars
Investments in mutual funds
Unquoted
154.716 (31 March 2018: 154.716) units in HDFC Liquid Fund-Regular Plan-Growth

Total current investments
13

Trade receivables
Considered good-unsecured
Receivables from others
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total trade receivables

Balance with banks:
- in current account
Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits with original maturity greater than 3 months but less than 12 months

Total other bank balance

527,668

566,307

527,668
(Amount in `)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

2,085,748
2,085,748

1,447,876
1,447,876
(Amount in `)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

232,562

623,714

172,819
405,381

22,085
645,799
(Amount in `)

As at
31 March 2019
706,142

As at
31 March 2018
344,271

706,142

344,271

Loans
Particulars
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees
Total loans

17

566,307

Other bank balance
Particulars

16

As at
31 March 2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

15

As at
31 March 2019

Trade receivables
Particulars

14

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)
As at
31 March 2019
5,928
5,928

(Amount in `)

Other current assets
Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018
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Advance recoverable in cash or kind
Prepayments
Balances with statutory/government authorities
Total other current assets

58,620
477,382
4,921,351
5,457,353

519,500
267,097
1,756,365
2,542,962
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18 Equity share capital and other equity
Equity share capital
Authorised share capital

(Amount in `)
Particulars

No. of shares
5,000,000
5,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000

As at 1 April 2017
Increase during the year
As at 31 March 2018
Increase during the year
As at 31 March 2019

Amount
50,000,000
50,000,000
100,000,000
100,000,000

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend. During the year, no
dividend declared to equity shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.
(Amount in `)

Issued share capital

As at 1 April 2017
Increase during the year
As at 31 March 2018
Increase during the year
As at 31 March 2019

Particulars

Shares of the company held by holding company
Particulars
Ador Fontech Limited*

No. of shares
4,000,000
2,500,000
6,500,000
2,000,000
8,500,000

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

8,500,000

6,500,000

Amount
40,000,000
25,000,000
65,000,000
20,000,000
85,000,000
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*Includes 100 equity shares each held by Mr. Aditya T. Malkani, Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal and Mr. H. P.
Ledwani as nominee of Ador Fontech Limited.
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at
31 March 2019
Number of
%
Shares held
of Holding
8,500,000
100%

Name of Shareholder
Ador Fontech Limited

As at
31 March 2018
Number of
%
Shares held
of Holding
6,500,000
100%

As on the date of the Balance Sheet:
(a) The Company has not issued any equity share as fully paid pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash.
(b) The Company has not issued any fully paid bonus share.
(c) The Company also did not buy back any equity share.
Issue/conversion of equity shares: As on the date of the Balance Sheet, the Company has not issued securities like convertible
preference shares, convertible debentures etc., which are convertible in to equity/preference shares.
(Amount in `)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings
Total

As at
31 March 2019
(76,217,371)
(76,217,371)

(Amount in `)

Retained earnings
Particulars

As at
31 March 2018
(47,979,351)
(47,979,351)

As at
31 March 2019
(47,979,351)

As at
31 March 2018
(27,668,770)

Opening Balance
Transaction during the year Net profit / loss for the year
(28,309,198)
(20,328,518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
71,178
17,937
Closing balance
(76,217,371)
(47,979,351)
Nature and Purpose - Retained earnings pertain to the accumulated earnings / losses made by the company over the years.
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(Amount in `)

Other financial liabilities
Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

Non Current
Others
Creditor for capital goods

Current
Creditor for capital goods
Employee related dues
Outstanding expenses
Other payable

Total other financial liabilities
20

Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36)
- Provision for Compensated absences (Refer note 36)
Non- current
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36)
- Provision for Compensated absences (Refer note 36)

Total Provisions
21

-

2,469,600

-

2,469,600

7,832,604
404,881
303,355
3,525,710
12,066,550

2,963,520
264,284
1,027,599
404,420
4,659,823

12,066,550

7,129,423
(Amount in `)

Provisions
Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

408
223,088
223,496

336
132,023
132,359

251,860
930,291
1,182,151

212,413
535,140
747,553

1,405,647

879,912
(Amount in `)

Current borrowings
Particulars

Maturity date

Loan repayable on demand
Secured
From bank
Bank overdraft

Payable on demand

Effective Interest rate
As at
(%)
31 March 2019

9.75% p.a. floting rate

Total current borrowings

As at
31 March 2018

30,127,838

18,884,025

30,127,838

18,884,025

The overdraft facility was sanctioned by the bank against collateral security (Mutual Funds) of Ador Fontech Limited ("Holding Company"). In
terms of Tripartite Agreement, marking lien on mutual fund investments in favor of the bank.
Net debt reconciliation
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents
Current borrowings
Net debt
Particulars
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Cash flows (net)
Finance costs
Finance costs paid
Balance as at 31 March 2019
22

As at
31 March 2019
405,381
(30,127,838)
(29,722,458)
Cash and cash
equivalents
645,799
(240,418)
405,381

As at
31 March 2018
645,799
(18,884,025)
(18,238,225)
Current borrowings
(18,884,025)
(11,243,814)
1,505,894
(1,505,894)
(30,127,838)
(Amount in `)

Trade payables
Particulars

23

(Amount in `)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Current
Trade payables
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note. 34)
Due to others

2,377,035

707,562

Total Trade payables

2,377,035

707,562
(Amount in `)

Other current liabilities
Particulars
Statutory tax payables
Advances from customers
Total other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2019
397,036
3,444,008
3,841,044

As at
31 March 2018
83,027
2,415,785
2,498,812

Total
(18,238,225)
(11,484,232)
1,505,894
(1,505,894)
(29,722,458)

3D FUTURE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

24

Particulars

Sale of products
Sale of services
Other operating revenue
Total revenue from operations
25

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

19,337,952
466,011
252,957
20,056,921

11,852,546
58,834
35,212
11,946,592
(Amount in `)

Other Income
Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
Realised gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVTPL

34,892
-

51,291
160,046

Net gains/ (losses) on fair value changes on financial assets measured at FVTPL

38,639

Foreign currency fluctuation expenses (net)
Sundry balances written back
Other non operating income
Total other Income

Details of interest income
Particulars

Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost
- on bank deposits
- on security deposits measured at amortised cost
- on income on tax refund
Sub-total

26

(Amount in `)

Revenue from operations

101,604
409,382
547,716
1,132,233

638,405
849,742

For the year ended
31 March 2019

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
31 March 2018

24,301
10,591
34,892

22,844
28,127
320
51,291

(Amount in `)

Cost of materials consumed
Particulars

Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing stock
Total cost of materials consumed

-

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1,023,027
8,545,095
2,492,612
7,075,510

1,172,336
4,262,842
1,023,027
4,412,151
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Particulars
Opening Inventory:
Finished goods
Work-in- progress
Traded goods
Closing Inventory:
Finished goods
Work-in- progress
Traded goods

Total change in inventories of finished goods, work -in-progress and
traded goods
28

Salaries and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (Refer note 36)
Staff welfare expense
Total employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2018

83,320
83,320

57,180
57,180

181,910
181,910

83,320
83,320

(98,591)

(26,139)

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
31 March 2019
14,460,271
501,740
135,706
576,116
15,673,833

For the year ended
31 March 2018
11,054,417
418,689
119,903
621,561
12,214,570
(Amount in `)

Finance costs
Particulars

30

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Employee benefits expense
Particulars

29

(Amount in `)

Change in inventories of finished goods, work -in-progress and traded goods

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortisation cost
(a) Interest on bank borrowings

1,505,894

1,465,354

Total finance costs

1,505,894

1,465,354
(Amount in `)

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5)
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2019
4,869,545
376,056

For the year ended
31 March 2018
4,050,883
374,292

5,245,601

4,425,175
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(Amount in `)

Other expenses
Particulars
Consumables and stores
Administrative expenses
Freight, clearing and forwarding charges
Transportation expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Legal and professional
Commission
License fees & other service charges
Advertisement, marketing and business promotion expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Payments to auditors (Refer note 31.1 below)
Electricity expense
Lease rentals (Refer note 35)
Communication expense
Computer expenses
Loss arising on financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Printing and stationery
Testing expenses
Foreign currency fluctuation expenses (net)
Rates and taxes
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off
Insurance
Software license fees
Website and web portal expense
Miscellaneous expense
Total other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

760,086
841,323
356,863
207,000
3,736,391
4,999,540
7,200,516
1,828,838
2,597,953
3,518,259
150,000
253,169
616,801
424,488
138,668
146,142
77,302
432,097
441,908
540,724
29,268,067

549,358
466,643
1,616,945
5,675,967
23,550
1,618,039
734,436
100,836
30,000
199,107
500,271
474,656
101,915
70,265
316,822
460,800
22,559
500,000
85,124
44,811
574,648
552,801
654,563
15,374,116

31.1 Auditors' remuneration
Particulars
Statutory audit
Tax audit
Total auditors' remuneration
32

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

120,000
30,000
150,000

30,000
30,000
(Amount in `)

Tax expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

A. The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under :
(i) Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax
In respect of current year
Adjustments in respect of previous year
Deferred tax
In respect of current year
Income tax expense/(benefit) recognised in the statement of profit and
loss
(ii) Income tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax :
Deferred tax expense on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax expense/(benefit) recognised in OCI

-

-

(9,517,589)
(9,517,589)

(4,957,500)
(4,957,500)

(25,009)
(25,009)

(6,220)
(6,220)
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Tax reconciliation
Particulars
Loss before income tax expense
Tax rate
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable in calculating
taxable income
Timing difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per Income
Tax Act ,1961
Employees benefit expenses
Tax losses
Remeasurement benefit of the defined benefit plans through OCI
Defered tax impact on IndAS adjustments
Deduction u/s 35 D
Tax Expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
(37,826,787)
(25,286,019)
26.00%
25.75%

360,530

302,361

181,596
9,027,922
(25,009)
(10,179)
(42,280)
9,492,580

127,237
4,495,933
(6,220)
23,169
8,800
4,951,280

The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 26% (31 March 2018: 25.75%) applicable to the Company
on taxable profits under Indian tax law.
(Amount in `)

Items of other comprehensive income
Particulars
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit obligations
Deferred tax relating to the above
Total
33

For the year ended
31 March 2019
96,187
(25,009)

24,157
(6,220)

71,178

17,937
(Amount in `)

Earning per shares
Particulars
Net profit/(loss) after tax for the year
Weighted number of ordinary shares for basic EPS
Nominal value of ordinary share (in ` per share)
Basic and Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in ` per share)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2019
(28,309,198)
8,500,000
10
(3.33)

For the year ended
31 March 2018
(20,328,518)
6,500,000
10
(3.13)
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Micro and small enterprises
There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31
March 2019. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

35

Leases
The Company does not have any assets given on lease during the reporting period.
Assets taken on operating lease
The company has taken equipment on operating lease from it's holding Company. The lease rentals are payable by the Company on monthly
basis. The aggregate lease rentals expense are charged as ‘Lease rentals’ under Note. 31 .
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as below:
Particular

As at
31 March 2019

(Amount in `)
As at
31 March 2018

608,712
1,332,402
1,941,114

608,712
1,941,114
2,549,826

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years
Total
36 Employee benefits

A Defined contribution plans
Provident fund and pension
In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to
receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.
The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the Employee’s Provident Fund Organization on account of Employee’s provided
fund scheme and Employee’s pension scheme. The total expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year on account of
defined contribution plans amounted to ` 5,01,740 (Previous year: ` 4,18,689).
B Defined benefit plans (Unfunded)
Gratuity - long term defined benefit plan
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering
certain categories of employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or termination
of employment being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the
Company.
Principal actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation As at and for the year ended are as
follows:

Discount rate
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees

Year ended
31 March 2019
7.55%

Year ended
31 March 2018
7.85%

7.50%

7.50%

Assumptions regarding mortality rates are based on mortality tables of ‘Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-2014)’ published by the Institute
of Actuaries of India
Details of Actuarial Valuation carried out on balance sheet date are as under:
Amount recognised in the balance sheet consists of:
Year ended
31 March 2019
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation (unfunded)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

Year ended
31 March 2018

252,268
252,268

212,749
212,749

119,018
16,688
135,706

111,137
8,766
119,903

Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss in respect of
gratuity scheme are as follows:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Total charge to statement of profit or loss
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Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
are as follows:
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside statement of profit and
loss
Re-measurement losses / (gains) arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Re-measurement losses / (gains) arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Re-measurement losses /(gains) arising from experience adjustments
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability

3,538

27,695

11,913

65,890

(31)

-

(108,069)
(92,649)

(90,047)
3,538

212,749
119,018
16,688
11,913

117,003
111,137
8,766
65,890

The movement during the year of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation was as follows:
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the period
Current service cost
Interest on defined benefit obligation
Re-measurement losses / (gains) arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Re-measurement losses / (gains) arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Re-measurement losses /(gains) arising from experience adjustments
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of period

(31)

Current liability
Non Current liability

-

(108,069)

(90,047)

252,268

212,749

408
251,860

336
212,413

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16.21 years for the year ended March 31, 2019, 17.57 years for year ended
March 31, 2018.
The gratuity scheme of the Company is unfunded hence there was no plan asset as at March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018.
C Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) are discount rate and expected salary increase.
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of the sensitivity analysis is given below:

Period ended 31 March 2019
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO
Period ended 31 March 2018
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Discount rate

Salary escalation Rate

-7.72%
8.52%

8.48%
-7.76%

-8.33%
9.28%

9.27%
-8.39%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. There is no change in the
method of valuation for the prior period.
In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined obligation liability recognized in the balance
sheet.
D Risk analysis
Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefits plans and
management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:
The amount of defined benefit obligation, plan assets, the deficit thereof and the experience adjustments on plan assets and plan liabilities for
the current and previous four years are as follows:
(i) Salary growth risks
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participates. Salary increase
considered @ 7.5%. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.
(ii) Life expectancy / Longevity risks
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The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimates of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. Mortality tables as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-2014) is used for during the employment and
post retirement respectively. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. Since the benefits are
lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to longevity risks.
(iii) Interest rate risks
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.
E Compensated Absences
The Company has provided for the liability on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected accrued benefit method which is same as the
projected unit credit method in respect of past services.
The total expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year on account of compensated absences amounted to ` 5,85,296
(Previous year: ` 3,82,224 ).
37 Contingent liabilities and Commitments
(a) Contingent liabilities
There is no contingent liabilities of the company for the reporting periods.
(b) Commitments
For operating lease commitments, Refer Note 35
38 Segment Information
The Company is engaged in the business of 3D printed dental health care products and services and is having its manufacturing facilities
located in India. The performance of the Company is assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) as a single
operating segment and accordingly 3D printed dental health care products and services is the only operating segment.
The company is domiciled in India. The amount of it's revenue from external customer broken down by location of the customers is shown in
table below:
Revenue from external customer
India
Outside India
Total Revenue
All Non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

For the year ended 31
March 2019
19,966,967
89,954
20,056,921

(Amount in `)
For the year ended 31
March 2018
11,833,879
112,713
11,946,592
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39 Related Party Disclosures :
A Names of related parties and description of relation:

`

(i) Holding Company
Ador Fontech Limited (Holding 100% shares in the Company)
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt Ltd. (Ultimate Holding Company)

(ii) Related parties other than holding companies with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
1908 E Ventures Pvt. Ltd.
Ador Powertron Limited
ii) Key management personnel (KMP)
Mr. Aditya Tarachand Malkani
Mr. Harsh Pramod Joshi, Company Secretary (upto 16 December 2018)
Ms. Nidhi Khandelwal , Company Secretary (w.e.f. 22 April, 2019)
iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel where transactions have taken place
None
B Transactions with related parties for the year are as follows:
Transaction during the year

(Amount in `)

Holding Companies
Year ended
Year ended
31st March 2019
31st March 2018

Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration
Mr. Harsh Pramod Joshi
Deposit given
Ador Fontech Limited

-

-

Key management personnel (KMP)
Year ended
Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

-

100,000

Other related parties
Year ended
Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

250,274

140,600

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Security deposit re-paid
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.

320,000

-

-

-

Purchase of fixed asset (gross)
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.
Ador Powertron Limited

816,521
-

-

-

-

Lease rent paid (net of tax)
Ador Fontech Limited

608,712

-

-

-

-

-

3,233
197333

-

-

9,480
4,190
251,804

-

-

-

1,938

-

-

Purchase of material (gross)
1908 E Venture Pvt Ltd
Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
Reimbursement of expenses paid
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.
1908 E Venture Pvt Ltd
Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
Ador Powertron Limited
Reimbursement of expenses Received
1908 E Venture Pvt Ltd
Proceeds from Issuance of Equity Share Capital
Ador Fontech Limited
License fees and common area maintenance charges
paid (gross)
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.
Ador Powertron Limited
License fees paid in advance (gross)
Ador Powertron Limited
Business support charges paid (gross)
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.

-

177,189
-

-

493,734
-

315,450
-

-

429,734

-

122,649
182,315

-

20,000,000

25,000,000

-

-

1,247,936
-

1,801,227
-

-

-

219,822

-

-

-

39,778

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

236,000

-

234,500

C Balances at the year end :
Other financial liabilities
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.
Ador Powertron Limited

625,281
-

Security Deposit paid (Assets)
Ador Fontech Limited
J. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Ltd.

100,000
-

100,000
320,000

681,538
-

-
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40 Financial Instruments
(Amount in `)

40 (A): Category-wise classification of Financial Instrument
As at
Particulars

Note

A. Financial Assets
(i) Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Trade receivables
Equity shares (unquoted)
Loans
Other non current financial assets

Sub-total

31
March 2019
Carrying value Fair value

As at
31 March 2018
Carrying
Fair value
value

14
15
13
6
16
7

405,381
706,142
2,085,748
5,928
660,073
3,863,271

405,381
706,142
2,085,748
5,928
660,073
3,863,271

645,799
344,271
1,447,876
4,999,540
333,499
7,770,984

645,799
344,271
1,447,876
4,999,540
333,499
7,770,984

12

566,307
566,307

566,307
566,307

527,668
527,668

527,668
527,668

4,429,578

4,429,578

8,298,652

8,298,652

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550
44,571,423

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550
44,571,423

18,884,025
707,562
2,469,600
4,659,823
26,721,010

18,884,025
707,562
2,469,600
4,659,823
26,721,010

44,571,423

44,571,423

26,721,010

26,721,010

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in mutual funds

Sub-total
Total financial assets

B. Financial Liabilities
(i) Measured at amortised cost
Bank borrowings
Trade payables
Other Non-Current financial liabilities
Other Current financial liabilities

Sub-total

21
22
19
19

Total financial liabilities
40 (B): Fair value measurements

(i) The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities:
As at 31 March 2019
Financial assets/financial liabilities

A. Financial assets
(i) Measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets*
Sub-total
(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit
l
Investments
in quoted mutual funds

Sub-total

B. Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities*

(Amount in `)
Fair Value
As at
As at
31 March 31 March 2018
2019

Note

Fair value
hierarchy
(Level)

7

3

660,073
660,073

333,499
333,499

12

1

566,307
566,307

527,668
527,668

1,226,380

861,167

Total financial assets

Total financial liabilities
* Represents fair value of Non-current Financial instruments

3

-

2,469,600
2,469,600

-

2,469,600

Note:
1. Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.
2. Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. Cost of unquoted equity instruments has
been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost
represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.
3. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, other bank balances, non-current loans, current loans,
other current financial asset, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost in the financial
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts
would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
4. There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the above periods.
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41 Financial risk management
The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of
investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, trade receivables and other receivables. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks.
A. Credit risk
Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from
financial assets such as trade receivables, investment in mutual funds, other balances with banks, loans and other receivables.
Credit risk management
To manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of providing credit to the domestic customers basis the nature of customers. The credit limit policy is
established considering the current economic trends of the industry in which the company is operating. However, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic
basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly. The Company’s historical experience of collecting
receivables and the level of default indicate that credit risk is low and generally uniform across markets; consequently, trade receivables are considered to be a single
class of financial assets. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking into account the age of the dues, specific credit circumstances, the track record of the
counterparty etc.
Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with government agencies/public sector undertakings.
The table below provide details regarding past dues receivables as at each reporting date:
As at
31 March 2019
811,853
794,802
340,976
138,117
2,085,748
-

Particulars
Upto 30 days
30-90 days
90-365 days
More than 365 days
Total
Expected credit loss

As at
31 March 2018
777,921
525,002
144,952
1,447,876
-

B Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk
arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities – trade payables and other financial liabilities.
Liquidity risk management
The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages
the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there
is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.
(i) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period:
As at
31 March 2019

Particulars
Floating rate
Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year

As at
31 March 2018

19,872,162
-

10,682,975
-

The table below analysis non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Less than 1 year Between 1 to 5
years
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings (Refer Note 21)
Trade payables (Refer Note 22)
Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 19)
As at 31 March 2018
Borrowings (Refer Note 21)
Trade payables (Refer Note 22)
Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 19)

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550

-

18,884,025
707,562
4,659,823

2,469,600

Over 5 years

Total

-

-

-

(Amount in `)
Carrying value

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550

30,127,838
2,377,035
12,066,550

18,884,025
707,562
7,129,423

18,884,025
707,562
7,129,423

C Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables which are held in USD and Euro. The fluctuation in the exchange rate of INR
relative to USD and Euro may not have a material impact on the company's assets and liabilities.
Foreign currency risk management
In respect of the foreign currency transactions, the company does not hedge the exposures since the management believes that the same is insignificant in
nature and also it will be offset to some extent by the corresponding receivables and payables.
The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as under:
(Amount in `)
Assets

Liabilities
Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

USD
620,716
211,694
6,357,517
10,376
Euro
209,796
Sensitivity to foreign currency risk
The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD and Euro. The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5% increase or decrease in the USD and Euro
against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the Company as at the reporting date.
5% represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.
(Amount in `)
Effect on total equity

Effect on profit after tax
Change in rate

As at
31 March 2019

USD
+5%
-5%
Euro
+5%
-5%

(317,357)
317,357
(10,490)
10,490

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2019

(20,451)
20,451

-

-

(317,357)
317,357
(10,490)
10,490

As at
31 March 2018
(20,451)
20,451
-

(ii) Price Risk
The company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit and loss.
To manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering the risk and return profile of the mutual
funds i.e. the debt profile of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks and other institutional parties and equity investment
is made after considering the performance of the stock.. However, the entity being risk averse has opted to invest its substantial funds in debt oriented mutual
funds. The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5% increase or decrease in the NAV, with all other variables held constant.

Sensitivity
Impact on profit after tax for 5% increase in NAV
Impact on profit after tax for 5% decrease in NAV

As at
31 March 2019
20,953
(20,953)

(Amount in `)
As at
31 March 2018
19,590
(19,589)

As at
31 March 2019
30,127,838
30,127,838

(Amount in `)
As at
31 March 2018
18,884,025
18,884,025

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company interest rate risk is mainly due to the borrowings acquired at floating interest rate.
Particulars
Variable rate borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings
Total
Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars
Increase by 50 bps
Decrease by 50 bps

(Amount in `)
Impact on profit before tax
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
150,639
94,420
(150,639)
(94,420)

42 Capital management
Risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to
• safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
• maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.
The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company
(Amount in `)
As at
As at
Particulars
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
Net debts
29,156,151
17,710,557
Total equity
8,782,629
17,020,649
Net debt to equity ratio
3.32
1.04
Net debt includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-current and earmarked balances) and current
investments.
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Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped /re-classified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's presentation.

This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118160W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623

Aditya T. Malkani
Chairman
DIN: 01585637

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
Director
DIN: 00031985

Nidhi Khandelwal
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

We have believed that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting
A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparations of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 1)
Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuracy and fairly reflect the
transactions and disposition of assets of the Company: 2) provides reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company: and 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override or controls, material misstatement
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedure may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our Opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Sanjay & Snehal
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 118160W
Sanjay T. Tupe
Partner
Membership No. 49623
Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May 2019

